NEWYORK | Department
OPPORTUNITY. Of Health

ANDREW M. CUOMO HOWARD A. ZUCKER, M.D., J.D. SALLY DRESLIN, M.S., R.N.
Governor Commissioner Executive Deputy Commissioner

May 20, 2020
CERTIFIED MAIL-RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Ralph K. Messo, Jr., DO

Re: License No. 184376

Dear Dr. Messo:

Enclosed is a copy of the New York State Board for Professional Medical Conduct (BPMC) Modification
Order No. 20-131. This order and any penalty provided therein goes into effect May 27, 2020.

Please direct any questions to: Board for Professional Medical Conduct, Riverview Center, 150
Broadway, Suite 355, Albany, New York 12204, telephone # 518-402-0846.

Sincerely,

Michael S. Jakubowski, M.D.
Interim Executive Secretary
Board for Professional Medical Conduct

Enclosure

Empire State Plaza, Coming Tower, Albany, NY 12237 | health.ny.gov



BPMC No 20-131

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE ROARD FOR PROFE SSIONAL MEDICAL CONNUC T
H * TG ‘l'_m“- i —
L ST MODIFICATION
OF
ORDER

RALPH MESSO, D.O.

Upon the proposed Appl.caton for a Mod fication Order Pursuanl lIo MY Pub Heallh
L § 230010)q) of Ralph Messo, O O (UICENSFEE) which is made a part of this Modificalion
Ceder. tis agreed 1o ond

OROERED hal the aitached Application, and is terms, are adopled and SO
ORDERED, and it is further

ORDERED lhat this Mod.fication Order shal be eflectve upon ssuance by the Board,

either
* by mailing of a capy ol this Modification Order, either by first class lo Respendent
3l the address n the allached Applicalion or by cerified mail (o Respondent's
allomey OR
= upon facsimile ransmissian (9 Rospandent or Respondent's atiomey
whichever 15 irst
SO ORDERED
CARMELA TORRELLI
Vice Chair

Slate Board for Professional Medical Conduct



NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT

IN THE MATIER
OF
RALPH MESSQ, D.O.

APPLICATION
FOR
MODIFICATION
ORDER

Ralph Messo, D O, represents that all of the following statements are true:
That on or about Octobar 19, 14990, | was licensed lo praclice as a physician in the

State of New York and issued License No. 184376 by the New York State Educalion

Departmant.

My current address is

and I will advise the Director of the rofesstonal Medical Conduct of any change
of address.

I am currently subject 1o 9 Delermination and Order BPMC Order ## 19-283 of the
Professional Medical Conduct Administrative Review Board {Attachmenl 1) {henceforth
"Origenal Order”), which went into eflecl on November 25, 2019, and which was issued
following an appeal lo the Adminisieative Review Board for professional medical conduct
pursuant o N Y. Pub. Health Law §230(10) and §230-¢  Pursuan! to N.Y Pub. Heallh Law
§ 230(10i(q). ! hereby apply to the Slate Board for Professional Medical Conduct for an

Order (henceforth “Modification Order”), modifying lhe Qriginal Order, as lo/lows:

The sanction imposed in the Original Order was




Pursuant to Pub. Heaith Law §230-a(2). Respondenl’s license lo praclice medicine
is wholly suspended unlil Respondent completes the following educational
requirements

a. The Respondenl shall complete (50} continuing medical education (CME}
credits, approved by the Direclor of OPMC, including at leasl 40 cred s in the
Respondent’s specially, the completion of one ethics course and one federal and
state compliance course,

b. The Respondent shall successiully comp'cte a physician re-entry program
approved by the Direclor and
Upon termination of his suspension, the Respondent shal be placed on probation
for a pericd of iwo years, including practice with a physician monitor approved by
the Director, under the terms of the Appenrdix atlached to the Commiliec's
Determnalion (Atlachment 1)
The sanction imposcd shall be modified to read as follows:
Upon the effecive date of this Modification Order, the suspension is termmnated;
Respondenl shail be permilled 1o praclice medicine at Staten Island Urnversity
Hospilal {SIUH) to assisl wilh lhe Covid-19 crisis, as approved by the Direclor of
OPMC, as part of his physician re-eniry program. Any praclice of medicine in New
York State oulside of this approved work. as part ol Respondent’s physician re-
entry program, or beyond the Covid-19 declaralion period, as delermined by the
Director, shall constitule the unauthonzed practice of medicine;
Upon the end of the Covid-19 declaration period, as determined by the Direclor, or
upon a change in Respondent’s dutics, Respondent shall complete the remainder of
his physician re-entry program as approved by the Director;

Upan completion of the re-entry program and the CME requirements, as defined in
lhe Qriginat Order, Respondent shall be placed on probation for two years;




and

All remaining Terms and Conditiens will continue as wrilten in the Original Order

I make this Application of my own (ree will and accord and not under duress,
compulsion or restraint, and scek the antic pated benefil of the requested Modification. In
consideration of the value to me of the acceptance by the Board of this Application. |
knowingly waive my right to contest the Original Order or lhe Maodification Order for which |
apply. whether administrialively or judicially, and ask Lhat the Board grant this Application,

lunderstand and agree that the altorney for the Bureau of Professional Medical
Conduct. the Director of the Ollice of Professional Medical Conducl and the Chair of the
Slate Board lor Professional Medical Conduct each retain complete discretion either (o
cnter into Lhe proposed agreement and Order, based upon my application, or to decline 1o |
do so. | further understand and agree thal no prrer or separale wnlten or oral |

communicalion can limil thal discretion,

pare/ [ 12U
g e P
_“RALPH MESSO, D.O.
/" RESPONDENT

7/




The undersigned agree to Respondent's attached Application for Madification Order
and lo ils proposed penally, terms and conditions,

DATE: 5/j<7’ 4020

.ESQ.
Attorney for Respondent

pate -1 4-20

~Director
Qifice of Professional Medical Conduct




ATTACHMENT “1”



NEWYORK | Department

STATE OF
OPPORTUNITY. Of H e alth
A:NDREW M. CUOMO HOWARD A. ZUCKER, M.D., J.D. SALLY DRESLIN, M.S., R.N.
Governor - Commissioner Executive Deputy Commissioner

November 18, 2019

CERTIFIED MAIL - RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mare S. Nash, Esq. Daniel G. Giaquinto, Esq.
NYS Department of Health Frier & Leviit, LLC

Empire State Plaza 84 Bloomfield Avenue

Corning Tower Building, Room 2412 Pine Block, New Jersey 07058

Alhany, New York 12237

Ralph Messo, D.O.

RE: In the Matler of Ralph Messo, D.O.

Dear Parties.

Enclosed please find the Determination and Order (No. 19-283) of the Professional
Medical Conduct Administrative Review Board in lhe above referenced malter. This
Determination and Order shall be deemed effective upon receipt or seven (7) days alter mailing
by cenified mail as per the provisions of §230, subdivision 10, paragraph (h) of the New Yorlk
Stale Public Health Law

Five days after receipt of this Order, you will be required lo deliver to the Board of
Professional Medical Conduct your license to practice medicine if said license has been
revoked, annulied, suspended or surrendered, together with the registration cerlificate.
Delivery shall be by either certified mail or in person to:

Office of Professional Medical Conduct
New York State Department of IHealth
Riverview Center

150 Broadway — Suite 355

Albany, New York 12204

b mplie Stale Plaza, Goming Tower, Albany, NY 12237 | health ny gov



If your license or registration certificate is lost, misplaced or its whereabouts is otherwise
unknawn, you shall submit an affidavit lo that effect. If subsequently you locate the requested
items, they must then be delivered to the Office of Professional Medical Conduct in the manner

noted above.

This exhausts alt administrative remedies in this matter [PHL §230-c(5)).

Sincerely,

James F. Horan
Chief Administralive Law Judge
Bureau of Adjudication

JFH; cmg
Enclosure



STATE OF NEW YORIC: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAT. CONDUCT

In the Malter of
Ralph Messo, D.0. (Respondent) Administrative Review Board (ARB)

A proceeding 1o review a Delermination by a Commiltee Determination and Order No. 19- 283

{Commitiee) from the Doard for Professional Medical
Conduct (BPMC)

Before ARB Members Grabice, Wilson and Rabin
Administrative Law Judge James F, Horan drafied the Determination

For the Department of Health (Petitioner):  Marc S. Nash, Esq.
FFor the Respondent: Daniel G. Giaquinto, Esq.

Following a hearing, a BPMC Committee found the Respondent guilty of professional
misconduct, duc to the Respondent’s Federal eriminal conviction for accepting a bribe. The
Committee voted to suspend the Respondent’s license to practice medicine in New York State
(License) until such time as the Respondent completes continuing medical education (CME) and
a physician re-entry program and to place the Respondent on probation following the suspension.
In this proceeding pursuant to New York Public Health Law (PHL) § 230-{; (M (a)(McKinney
2019), the Petitioner requests that the ARB overrule the Committee and revoke the Respondent’s
[icense, After reviewing the hcariug‘ record and the partics” review submissions, we vole 3-0 lo
alfirm the suspension, but to modify the conditions for the suspension’s completion and to

increase the period on probation from one year to two years,
Committee Determination on the Charges

Pursuant to PHL § 230 ez seq, BPMC and its Committees function as a duly authorized
pofessional disciplinary agency of the State of New York. The BPMC Committee in this case

condueted a hearing under the expedited hearing procedures (Direct Referral Hearing) in PHE




| §230(10)(p). The Petitioner’s Statement of Charges [Hearing Exhibit 1] alleged that the

| Respondent commilled professional misconduct under the definitions in New York Education
Law (BEL) §§6530(9)(a)(ii) & 6530(9)(d) (McKinney Supp. 2019) by engaging in conduct !:hal
tesulled in a criminal conviction under Federal Law and in disciplinary action by another state.
In the Direct Referral Hearing, the statute limits the Commiltee to determining the nature and

severity for the penalty to impose agaiost the licensee, In the Matter of Wolkoff v. Chassin, 89

N.Y.2d 250 (1996).

The evidence before the Committee demonstrated that the Respondent entered a guilty
plea on January 29, 2015 in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey to one
count of Racketeering - Transporting in Aid of Travel Act — Acceptance of Bribes, in violation
of Title 18 USC § 1952(a)(3) and Title 18 USC § 2. The District Court sentenced the Respondent
to 24 months imprisonment, 2 years supervised release, a $4,000 fine and forfeiture of $82,500.
Furllier, the evidence showed that the Respondent entered into a July 13, 2018 Consent Order
with the New Jersey Board of Medical Examiners (Jersey Board), which revoked the
Respondent’s New Jersey license due to the Respondent’s criminal conduct.

The Commiltee determined that the Respondent’s criminal conduct made the Respondent
finble for action against his License pursuant to BL § 6530(9)(a)(ii) & 6530(9)(d). The
Cominiltee voted to suspend the Respondent’s License until he completes suceessfully: a) 50
houts in CME credits, including one ethics course and one Federal/State compliance course and
b) a physician re-cntry course approved by the Department. Following the suspension, the
Committee placed the Respondent on probation for one year under the terms that appear at
Appendix I to the Committee’s Determination. The probation terms include practice with a

monitor.




The Petitioner had asked the Committee to revoke the Respondent’s License, or in the
alternative, that the Committee suspend the Respondent’s License for two full years and then
require the Respondent to complete reiraining classes and to demonstrate his fitness to practice
medicinc to the Department's satisfaction. The Petitioner expressed concern about whether the
Respondent would lack requisite skill and knowledge after the thne aw;ay from practice.

The Committee rejected revocation due to several mitigating factors. The Committee
found that the Respondent provided a high quality of care tlo_ his palients and held high standing
in (he community in which he practiced. The Committee also placed great impoitance on the
Respondent’s 2016 decision to relinguish his medical license in New York and New Jersey well
before his sentencing. The Committee appreciated the Respondent’s emphasis on his patients’
continued receipt of care by ensuring that the patients were given their medical records before
the Respondent sold his practice. Due to the relinguishment ol his licensure, the Respondent will
have been out of practice slightly more than 3 years by the time he is released from incarceration
on December 29, 2019, The Committee also found that the Respondent accepled full
responsibility for his crrors in judgement, cooperated with law enforcement and began to pay his
debt Lo society.

The Comumitiee also rejected the Petitioner’s request that the Committee suspend the
Respondent’s Ticensc for two full years upon the Respondent’s release from incarceration. The
Commiltee found that the twc;-year suspension would mean that the Respondent would have
been away from practice for five years due to the relinquishment, the imprisonment and then the
suspension. The Committee found that the suspension would fail to uddl"css the Petitioner's

concern about the Respondent’s ability to treat paticnts cffectively. The Committee voted to limi




the suspension following release until the Respondent completes the CME and the ve-cntry

program and then to place the Respondent on probation with a practice monitor.

Review History and Issues

‘I'he Commiltice rendered their Determination on May 8, 2019, This procecding

commenced on May 20, 2019, when the ARB received the Petitioner’s Notice requesting a
Review. The record on review included the hearing record, the Petitioner’s brief and the
Respondent’s reply brief. The record closed when the ARB received the reply brief on July 2,
2019,

The Petitioner asked that the ARB overturn the Commitiee’s Determination and revoke
the Respondent’s License, The Petitioner argued that revocation constiluted the appropriate
penalty due to the Respondent’s admission that he violated Federal Law and accepted $82,500 in
bribes to refer putients to Biodiagnostic Laboratory Services (BLS) for blood tests. Claims for

these tests were (hen submitted by BLS to Medicare and private insurance. The Commitice

rejected revoeation, however, and imposed suspension instead. The Petitioner argued that the
Committee failed (o provide the same protection to New York residents as the New Jersey Board |
provided to that state’s residents by revoking the Respondent’s New Jersey license. In the |
alternative, the Petitioner argued that the terms concerning the suspension and probation are
iusufﬁcicnt and require clarification. The Petitioner contends that the sanction should require

approval for the CME component from the Director of the Office for Professional Medical

Conduct (Dircctor). As (o the re-entry program, the Petitioner argued that the Cominittee

provided no direction on what program should be used and when the Respondent should respond

4- |



to the remediation. The Petitioner suggested extensive terms for the re-entry program. Finally,
tLie Petitioner asked the ARB to increase the probation from one year to three.

The Respondent replied that he ARB should not increase the sanction because the
Commitiee found evidence in the record concerning the Respondent’s rematse, the high quality
of care he provided, his cooperation with law enforcement and his voluntary closure of his
practices to allow a smooth transition of his paticnts to other physicians. The Respondent

contested the Petitioner’s assertion that the sanction the Committee imposcd failed to protect the

people of New York. The Respondent noted that he is currently incarcerated and his License is
suspended. [le will remain incarcerated until he completes 50 hours of CME and the re-entry
program and then may only practice if monitored by a BPMC approved physician and if

gompliant with probation for 12 months.
ARB Authority

Under PHL §§ 230(10)(i), 230-c{1) and 230-c(4)(b), the ARB may review

Determinations by Icaring Committees to determine whether the Determination and Penalty are

consistent with the Committee's findings of fact and conclusions of law and whether the Penalty
is appropriate and within the scope of penaltics which PHL § 230-a permits. The ARB may
substitute our judgment for that of the Committee, in deciding upon a penalty Matter of Bogdan

v. Med. Conduct Bd. 195 A.D.2d 86, 606 N.Y.5.2d 381 (3" Dept. 1993); in determnining guilt on

the charges, Matter of Spartalis v, State Bd. for Prof. Med, Conduct 205 A.D.2d 940, 613 NYS

2d 759 (3 Dept. 1994); and in determining credibility, Matter of Minielly v. Comm. of Health

229 A.D.2d 750, 634 N.Y.S.2d 856 (3 Dept. 1995). The ARB may choose to substitute our

-5-




judgment and impose a more severe sanction than the Commiliee on our own motion, even
without one party requesting the sanction that the ARB finds appropriate, Matter of Kabnick v,
Chassin, 89 N.Y.2d 828 (1996). In determining the appropriate penalty in a case, the ARB may

consider both aggravating and mitigating circumstances, as well as considering the protection of

society, rehabilitation and deterrence, Matter of Brigham v, DeBuono, 228 A.D.2d 870, 644
N.Y.S.2d 413 (1996). '

The statute provides no rules as to the form for bricfs, but the statute limits the review to
only the record below and the briefs [P1IL § 230-c(4)(a)], so the ARB will consider no evidence

from outside the hearing record, Maiter of Ramos v. IDeBuono, 243 A.D.2d 847, 6.63 N.Y.8.2d

361 (3" Dept. 1997).

A party aggrieved by an administrative decision holds no inhc;rcnt right to an
administrative appeal from that decision, and that parly may seck administrative review only
pursuant to statute or agency rules, Rooney v, New York State Department of Civil Service, 124
Misc. 2d 866, 477 N.Y.8.2d 939 (Westchester Co. Sup. Ct. 1984). The provisions in PHL §230-c

provide the only rules on ARB reviews.

The ARB has considered the recovd and the parties' briefs. We affirm the Committee’s
Determination that the conduct that resulted in the Respondent’s criminal conviclion constituted
professional misconduct. Neither party challenged the Committee findings on the charges. We
affirm the Committee’s Determination to suspend the Respondent’s License and to place the
Respondent on probation, with a monitor following the suspension. We agree with the

Committee that the record veveals mitigating factors in this casc that make revocation an




- inappropriate penalty. We modily the conditions on the probation, we affirm the conditions the
Committee placed on the re-entry program and we extend the period for the probation.

We agree that the Respondent should complete successfully 50 hours CME and that the
CME should include one course on ethics and one course in Federal/State compliance. We
madify the CME requirements to provide thal the Director must approve the CME courses. We
also require that at least forty hours in the CME must be courses in the Respondent’s specialty,

We agree that the Respondent should complete a re-entry program approved by the
Director. The Petitioner requested that we impose exiensive terms for the program. We decline
that as the Comumnittce has already required that the Director approve the program. The Director
may require such terms as part of the approval process.

We agree that the Respondent should practice on probation following the suspension,
under the terms at the Appendix to the Commitiee’s Determination, including practice with a

physician monitor approved by the Director. We modify the probation terms to make the

probation two years rather than one, We conclude thatl two years will provide a greater assurance

that the CME and the re-entry program will prepare the Respondent to re-enter practice safely.




4.

ORDER

NOW, with this Detcrmination as our basis, the ARB renders the following ORDER:

The ARB affirms the Commitiee's Determination that the Respondent committed
profcssional misconduct.

The ARB affirms the Committce’s Determination to suspend the Respondent’s License
and to place the Respondent’s on probation with a practice monitor.

We modify the conditions to end the suspension.

We increase the time on probation following the suspension from one year to two years,

Steven Grabiec, M.D.
Linda Prescott Wilson
Jill Rabin, M.D.

%




In_the Matter of Ralph Meyso, 3,0,

Stoven Crabice, M.D., an ARB Member concurs in the Determination and Drder it the

Matter of Dr. Messo,

Daied: % I ]k , 2019

” A —

Stuven Grabiec, M.D.

«8-




in the Mailer of Ralph Messo, DO.

Linda Prescott Wilson, an ARB Member coneurs in the Determination and Order in the
Matter@f Dr. Messo.
Dated. [3 (o7 &_Q_f 2019

Linda Prescott Wilson




~08-19,03: 29PM; ; ;

In_tha Matter of Ralph Messo, D.O.
Jill Rabin, M.D,, an ARB Member concurs in the Determination and Order in the Matter
of Dr, Messo,

Datad: _| l ; g 2019

et e e
Jill Rabin, M.D,

-1l-




NEW YORK Department

STATE OF
OPPORTUNITY Of Health
ANDREW M. CUOMO HOWARD A. ZUCIKKER, M.D., J.D. SALLY DRESLIN, M.S,, R.N.
Governor Commissioner Executive Deputy Commissioner
May 8, 2019

CERTIFIED MAIL - RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Daniel G. Giaquinto, Esq. Ralph Messo, D O.
Frier & Levill, LLC
B4 Bloomfield Avenue

Pine Brook, New Jersey 07058

Marc S. Nash, Esq.

MYS Department of Health
Coming Tower Room 2412
Empire State Plaza
Albany, New York 12237

RE: In the Malter of Ralph Messo, D.O.

Dear Paries.

Enclosed please find the Determination and Order (No. 19-111) of the Heanng
Committee in the above referenced matter. This Delermination and Order shall be deemed
effective upon the receipl or seven (7) days after mailing by cerlified mail as per the provisions of
§230, subdivision 10, paragraph (h} of the New York State Public Heallir Law.

Five days afler receipl of this Order, you will be required to deliver o the Board of
Professional Medical Conducl your license to practice medicine together with the regisiration
cerlificate. Delvery shall be by either cerlilied mail or in person to:

Office of Professional Medical Conduct
New York Slate Department of Health
Office of Professional Medical Conduct
Riverview Cenler

150 Broadway - Suile 355

Albany, New York 12204

If your license or regustration certificate is lost, misplaced or its whereabouts is otherwise
unknown, you shalil submit an affidavit 1o that effect  If subsequently you locale the requested
items, they must then be delivered lo the Office of Professional Medical Conduct in the manner

noled above

i e State Phaza, Cotung Tower, Abany, MY 12237 |heath 1y qov



As prescribed by the New York State Public Heallh Law §230, subdivision 10, paragraph
(i}, (McKinney Supp. 2015) and §230-c subdivisions 1 through 5, (McKinney Supp. 2015}, “the
determination of a commiltee on professional medical conduct may be reviewed by the
Administralive Review Board for professional medical conduct.” Either the licensee or the
Department may seelk a review of a commitlee determination.

Request lor review of the Commitlee’s delermination by the Administrative Review Board
stays penallies other than suspension or revocation until final determination by that Board.
Summary orders are not stayed by Administrative Review Board reviews.

All notices of review must be served, by certified mail, upon the Administrative Review
Board and the adverse party within fourteen (14) days of service and receipt of the enclosed
Delermination and Order.

The nolice of review served on the Adminislrative Review Board should be forwarded to:

James F. Horan, Esq., Chief Administrative Law Judge
New York State Depariment of Health

Bureau of Adjudication

Riverview Center

150 Broadway - Suile 510

Albany, New York 12204

The parties shall have 30 days from the nolice of appeal in which to file their briefs to the
Adminislrative Review Board. Six copies of all papers must also be sent to the allention of Mr.
Horan at the zbove address and one copy lo the olher parly. The slipulaled record in this matter
shall consist of the official hearing transcript(s) and all documents in evidence.

Panlies will be notilied by mail of the Adminisiralive Review Board's Delermination and
Order.

Sincerely,

James F. Horan
Chief Administrative Law Judge
Bureau of Adjudication

JFH: nm
Enclosure



STATE OF NEW YORIK : DEPARTMENT OF HEALTI
STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEMCAL CONDUCT

X
INTUHE MATTER : DETERMINATION
OorF : AND
RALPII MESSQ, D.O. H ORDER
: 19-111
= X

A hearing was held on April 17, 2019, at the offices of the New Yol State Department of
Health (Department), 90 Church Sueet, New Yorle, New York. Purswant to § 230(10)(c) of the Public
Health Law (PHL), TTTOMAS T. LEE, M.D., M.B.A., Chairperson, ELISA E. BURNS, M.1}., and
RUTH ITOROWITZ, Ph.D., duly designated members of the State Board for Professional Medical
Conduct, served as the learing Commitice in this matler. NATALIE 1. BORDEAUX,
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE (AL)), served as the Adminisuative Officer.

The Department appearcd by Mare S. Nush, Senior Altorney. A Notice of Relenal
Proceeding and Statement of Charges dided Movember 13, 2048 were duly served upon Danicl
Giaquinto, [sq., who appeared at the hearing and represented Ralph Messo, D.O. (Respondent).
(Lixhibits 1-2.)" The Respondent lestilied by telephone, and Donna Seminara, M.D. also testified on
the Respondent’s behalf.  The Heming Commiltee received and examined documents from e
Department (Exhibits 1-6) and the Respondent (Exhibits A-K), and a stenographic reporter prepared
atranseript of the proceeding. Alier consideration of the entire record, the Hearing Cotmmillee sustaing
the charges that the Respondent committed prolessional misconduct, in violation of Educution Law

(Iduc. Law) §§ 6530((a)(it) and 6530(9)(d}, and concludes that puisuant to PLL § 230-a, the penalty

' Pursuant 0 the Notice of Refermd Praceeding, this heanng was eonginably scheduled for Javtary 16, 20019, Tlowever, at
the parties® request, the heaing was rescheduled for Apil 17, 2619

Ralph Messo, DO Dieet Retenal 1




of suspension of the Respondent’s medical license, wholly, until the Respondent complies with the
terms set forth below, to be followed by a twelve-month period of probation, is appropriaic.

JURISDICTION

The Respondent is charged with professional misconduct pursuant to Edue. Law §
6530(9)(a)(ii), by having been convicted of an act conslituting a crime under federal law, and Edue.
Law § 6530(9)(d), by “[hlaving his or her license to practice medicine revoked...or having
voluntarily or otheywise surrendered his license afier a disciplinary action was instituted by a duly
nuthorized professional disciplinary agency of another slate, where the conduct resulting in the
revocation...or the surrender of the license would, if committed in New York state, constitute
professional misconduct under the laws of New Youk state.” In cases of professional misconduct
based solely upon a violation of Educ. Law § 6530(9), a licensee is cntitled to a hearing, the scope
of which 15 limited to whether (here is a relevant conviction or administrative determination and, if
so, the nature and severity of the penalty to be imposed. PHL § 230(10)(p). The Department had
the burden of proving its case by a preponderance of the evidence. PHL § 230(10)(f); 10 NYCRR
51.11(d)6).

FINDINGS OF FACT

The following findings and conclusions arc the unanimous determinations of the [learing
Committee:

1. On October 19, 1990, the Respondent was authorized 10 practicc inedicine in New York
by the Education Department and was issued license number 184376, (Exhibit 3.)

2. On Januwy 29, 20135, in the United States District Court, District of New Jersey, the
Respondent pled guilty to of one count of Rucketeering - Transporting in Aid of Truvel Act

Acceptance of Bribes (18 U.S.C. § 1952(a)(3)and 18 U.S.C. § 2.} On May 10, 2018, the Respondent

Ralpht Messo, .0 Direct Refernl 2




was convicted and sentenced 1o 24 months® imprisonment, followed by 2 years of supervised releasc.
In addition, the Respondent was fined 34,000 and ordered 10 pay a forfeiture of $82,500. (Exhibits 4
and 5.)

3. OnlJuly 13,2018, the Respendent and the New Jersey Board of Medical Examiners (“"New
Jersey Board™) entered into & Consent Order, whereby the Respondent’s license to practice medicine
in New Jersey was revolied because of his January 29, 2015 guilty plea and May 10, 2018 conviction.
(Exhibil 6.)

DISCUSSION

The Respondent pled guilty to, and was convi;:lcd of, a crime under federal law, specifically,
Rackeleering  Transporting in Aid of Travel Act-- Acceplance of Bribes. The Respondent’s guilty
plea and conviction of a federal crime caused the New Jersey Board to revoke his license to practice
medicine. Based on the Respondent’s conviction, the Hearing Committee has unanimously
determined that the Respondent violated Educ. Law § 6530(9)(a)(ii). The llearing Commitiee ulso
concludes unanimously that the Respondent violated Educ, Law § 6530(9)(d} because the conduct
resulting in the revocation of his New Jersey licensc Lo practice medicine would, if committed in New
Yorlk State, constitute professional misconduct under the laws of the State of New York, specifically,
Educ. Law § 6530(9)()(i1).

Upon consideration of ali of the penalties authorized by PHL § 230-a, including revocation,
suspension and/or probation, censure and reprimand, and the imposition of monctary penalties, the
Hearing Commiltee concludes that suspension of the Respondent’s medical license, wholly, until the
Respondent successtully completes 50 hours of continuing medical cducation and a physician re-

entry progrum, followed by additional conditions, is the most effective penalty.

Ralph Messo, DO Diveet Referral 3




Al the hearing, the Respondent expressed remorse fov his aclions. He cxplained that he sold
his medical offices in both New Jersey and New Yorle, voluntaily surrendered his medical licenses
in both states, and provided his patients with their complete medical records to ensure continuity of
care. In addition, the Respondent enrolled in and completed a legal ethics course and has continued
to read medical journals and textbooks when available.

The Respondent’s witness, Dr. Donna Seminara, has known the Respondent in a professional
capacily for over 20 years. She lestified with certainty that the quality of the Respondent’s
professional practice was exemplary, and that the Respondent was held in high regard in the
: community in whicly he practiced. Dr. Seminara explained thatshe has treated a considerable number
of the Respondent’s former patients since the Respondent sold his medical office in Staten Island,
NY. She conlitmed that the Respondent maintained clear and detailed medical records which greatly
facilitated their wansition to another physician. From the Respondent’s patient records and patient
accounts, Dv. Seminara affirmed that the Respondent had rendered excellent care to his patients.

Al the hearing, the Department sccommended the revocation of the Respondent’s medical
license, a penalty which the Commitice deems inappropriate in this case. Although the Hecaring
Committee does not condone the Respondent’s actions, the Commiltee {inds that the Respondent has
accepied full responsibility for his errors in judgment, and that he has already begun to pay his debt
to sociely. The [learing Commitiee acknowledges the Respondent’s (ull cooperation with law
enforcement and the proactive steps that he undertook to stop practicing medicine well before his
incarceration, including the sale of his medical practice and his willingness to enter into an inlerim
out-of-practice order with the Department before his sentencing and incarceration.

As an altemative 1o revocation of the Respondent’s medical license, the Department

yecommended the imposition of a whole two-year period of suspension of the Respondent’s medical
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license commencing upon his release from prison on Deceinber 29, 2019, the completion ol retraining
classes, and a requirement that the Respondent demonstrale his fitness 1o practice medicine to the
Department’s satisfaction after his suspension term ends. The Department noted that the Respondent
will not bave practiced medicine for five years when his suspension term ends and expressed concern
that he will lack the requisite knowledge to effectively treat pationts.

The Committee finds that suspension of the Respondent’s medical license is the most
appropriate penalty in this case due to several mitigating factors. The Committee notes the high
quality of carc that the Respondent provided to his palients, and the Respondent’s high standing in
the community in which he practiced. The Commiittee also places great import on the Respondent’s
voluntary relinquishment of his medical licenses and medical offices in both New York and Mew
Jersey well before his sentencing. 1n addition, the Committee appreciates the Respondent’s cmphasis
on his patients’ continued receipt of care by ensuring that his patients were given theiv medicul records
before he sold his medical practice.

Although the Commitiee agrees that the suspension of the Respondent’s medical license is an
appropriate penalty, the Hearing Committee believes that allowing the Respondent to demonstrate
his ability to safely practice medicine only after a whole lwo-year period of suspension commencing
on the daic of the Respondent’s release from prison would further dull the Respondent’s practical
competence. Preventing the Respondent from practlicing medicine for several more years would thus
not cffectively address the Department’s expressed concerns.  In reaching this determination, the
Hearing Comimitlcc has considered the approximate three years in which the Respondent is already
unable to practice medicine because of the voluntary sale of his medical practice no later than Qctober
2016, and his anticipated prison relcase on December 29, 2019. Therefore, the Committee concludes

that suspension of the Respondent’s medical license until the Respondent completes 50 conlinning
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medical education credits and a physician te-cntry program, when followed by a requirement that the
Respondent praclice medicine only when monitored by a practice monitor for the fivst twelve months
in which he resumes his medical practice, would more eftectively ensurce that the Respondent’s skills
and medical knowledge are sufficiently currcat to safely treat patients.

ORDER

IT IS IIEREBY ORDERED THAT:

1. The specifications of professional misconduct, as set forth in the Statement of Charges, arc
susluined;
2. The Respondent’s license to practice medicine is wholly SUSPENDED, pursuant to PHL
§ 230-a(2), until the Respondent completes the following educational requirements:
a. The Respondent shall complete 50 continuing medical education (CME)
credits, including the completion of one ethics course and one federal and state
compliance coursc;
b. The Respondent shall successfully complete a physicion re-eniry program
approved by the Department; and
3. Upon the termination of his suspension, the Respondent shall be placed on probation for
a period of twelve months, subject (o the terms of probation (Appendix I). During the Respondent’s
twelve-month probation term, the Respondent shall practice medicine in New York only when
monitored by a Board-approved practice monitor,
4. This Order shall be effective upon service on the Respondent in accordance with the

requircments of PHL § 230(10)(h).
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DATED: New York, New Yorlc

r1a7 4L, 2019

To:  Daniel G. Giaquinto, Esq.
Frier & Leviu, LLC
84 Bloomfield Avenue
Pine Brook, Mew Jersey 07058

Ratph Messo, D.O.

FCt Fort Dix
5756 Iartford & Pointvile Road
Jaint Base MDL, Mew Jersey 08640

Marce S, MNash

Scnior Altorney

Bureau of Professional Medical Conduct
Mew York State Department of Health
Corning Tower, Room 2512

Empire State Plaza

Albany, New Yorl 12237

Ralph Messo, 0.0 - Disect Referal

amas T. Lee, MLD., M.D.A.
Chairperson

Elisa E. Burns, M.D.
Ruth Horowitz, Ph.D.
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Terms of Probation

Respondent's conduct shall conform to moral and professional standards of conduct and
governing law. Any act of professional misconduct by Respondent as defined by Cdue. Law
6530 or 6531 shall constitute a violation of probation and may subject Respondent to an action
pursuant to PHL § 230(19).

Respondent shall maintain active registration of his license with the New York State Education
Department Division of Professional Licensing Services, and shall pay all vegistration {ees.

Respondent shall provide the Dircctor, Office of Professional Medical Conduct (OPMC),
Riverview Center, 150 Broadway, Suite 355, Albany, New York 12204 with the following
information, in writing, and ensurc that this information is kept curreni: a full descriplion of
his employment and practice; all professionat and residential addresses and telephone numbers
within and outside New York State; and all investigations, arrests, charges, convictions or
disciplinary actions by any local, statc or federal agency, institution or facility. Respondent
shall notify OPMC, in writing, within 30 days of any additions 1o or changes in the required
information.

Respondent shall cooperate fully with and respond in a limely manner to OPMC requests to
provide written periodic verilfication of his compliance with these terms, Upon the Director of
OPMC's request, Respondent shall meet in person with the Director's designee.

‘The probation period shall toll when Respondent is not engaged in active medical practice in
New Yorle State for a period of 30 consccutive days or more. Respondent shall notify the
Director of OPMC, in writing, if he is not cwrrently engaged in, or intends Lo leave, active
medical practice in New York State for a consecutive 30-day period. Respondent shall then
notify the Director again at least 14 days before returning Lo active practice. Upon Respondent’s
return 1o active practice in New York State, the probation period shall resume and Respondent
shall fulfill any unfulfilled probation terms and such ndditional requirements as the Director
may impose as reasonably relate (o the matters set forth in the Determination and Order or as
arc pecessary 1o protect the public health.

The Director of OPMC may review Respondent's irofessional performance. This review may
include but shall not be limited to: a review of office records, patient records, hospital charts,
and/or electronic records; and interviews with or periodic visits with Respondent and staft at
practice locations or OPMC offices.

For the Respondent’s iwelve-month probation period, the Respondent shali practice medicine
in New York State only when monitored by a licensed physician, board certified in an
appropriate speeially {practice monitor), who is proposed by Respondent and subject 1o the
written approval of the Dircclor of the OPMC.

a. The Respondent shall make available to the monitor any and all records or access (o
the practice requested by the monitor, including on-site observation. The practice
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monilor shall visit the Respondent’s medical practice at each and every location, on a
random, unannounced basis at least monthly and shall examine a selection (no (cwer
than 20) of records mointained by the Respondent, including palient records,
preseribing information and oftice records. The review will determine whether the
Respondent’s medical practice is conducted in accordance with generally accepled
standards of professional medical care. Any perceived deviation of accepted standards
of medical care or refusal to cooperate with the monitor shall be reporied within 24
hours 1o the OPMC.

b. Respondent shall cause the practice monitor to report quarterly, in writing, to the
Director of the OPMC.

c¢. Respondent shall be solely responsible for all expenses associated with monitoring,
including fees, if any, lo the monitoring physician,

d. Respondent shall maintain medical malpractice insurance coverage with limits no less
than $2 million per occurrence and $6 million per policy year, in accordance with §
230(18)(b) of the Public Health Law. Proof of coverage shall be submitted lo the
Disector of OPMC prior to Respondent commencing praclice within the State of New
York.

8. The terms set forth in the paragraphs above are the minimum probation terms o be imposed
on the Respondent, and other terms may be added by the Director of the OMPC. All
compliance costs, including expenses and fecs associated with the practice menitor, shall be
the Respondent’s responsibility.

9. Respondent shall comply with these probationary terms and shall bear all associated
compliance costs. Upon receiving evidence of noncompliance with, or a violation of, these
terms, the Director of OPMC and/or the Board may initiate a violation of probation proceeding,
and/or any other such proceeding aulhorized by law, against Respondent.
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NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT

IN THE MATTER : STATEMENT
oF ) OF
‘ CHARGES
RALPH MESSO, D.O.

RALPH MESSO, D.O., the Respondenl, was authorized to practice medicine in
New York State on or about Oclober 19, 1990, by the issuance of license number 184378

by the New York State Education Deparlment.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

A. On or about January 28, 20185, in the United States District Cburt, District of New
Jersey, Respondent pled guilly to one count of Racketeering - Transporling In Aid of
Travel Act — Acceplance of Bribes [18 U.S.C. § 1952(a)(3) and 18.U.5.C. § 2). Onor
about May 10, 2018, Respondent was convicted and sentenced to twenty-four months
imprisonment followed by two years of supervised release, and assessed a $4,000.90

fine. Respondent was also ordered to pay a forfeiture of $82,500.00.

B. On or about July 13, 2018, Respondent and the New Jersey Board of Medical
Examiners (hereinafter, "“New Jersey Board") entered into a Consent Order which
revoked Respondent's New Jersey's license to practice medicine. This disclpline was

based on Respondent's guilly plea and May 10, 2018 conviclion based on the facts of

Paragraph A.
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C. The Conduct resulting in the New Jersey Board's disciplinary action against

Respondent would constitute misconduct under the laws of New York State pursuant

lo the following Section of New York State Law:

1. New York Educational Law § 8530(9)(a)(ii) (Being convicted of a commilting an

acl constituling a crime under federal law).

SPECIFICATION OF CHARGES
FIRST SPECIFICATION

CRIMINAL CONVICTION (Federal)

Respondent Is charged with commitling professional misconduct as defined in N.Y,
Educ. Law § G530(9)(a)ii) by having been convicted of commilting an act constituting a

crime under federal law as alleged in the facts of the following:

1. The facls in Paragraph A,

SECOND SPECIFICATION

HAVING HAD DISCIPLINARY ACTION TAKEN

Respondent Is charged with commilling professional misconduct as defined In N.Y.
Educ. Law § 6530(9)(d) by having his or her license to practice medicine revoked,
suspended or having other disclplinary actlon taken, or having his or her application for a
license refused, revoked or suspended or having voluntarily or otherwise surrendered his

or her license after a disciplinary aclion was instituted by a duly authorized professional

semip Ty TP AP



disciplinary agency of another state, where the conduct resulting in the revocation,
suspension or other disciplinary aciion involving the license or refusal, revocation or
suspension of an application for a license or the surrender of the license would, if
com‘milted in New Yorl state, conslilute professional misconduct under the laws of New
York state (namely N.Y. Educ. Law § 6530(9)(a)(ii))) as alleged in the facls of the

follawing:

2, The facts in Paragréphs B and B.1.

DATE: November 13 , 2018
Albany, New York

MICHAEL A, HISER
Deputy Counsel
Bureau of Professional Medical Conduci
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